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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Directors present their strategic report on TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited (*TIH 2 or the
“Company™) for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Business Review
The Company is a whoily owned subsidiary of Nuveen Real Estate Global LLC, a limited liability company
incorporated in the Uniled States of America.

TIH 2 was incorporated in the United Kingdom vn 19 September 2013 by Teachers Insurance and Annuity
Association ("TIAA”), the ultimate controlling party of the Company as at the Statement of Financial Position
date, lo act as a holding company for TIAA’s investment in Nuveen Investment Management Holdings Limited
{**NIMIL™), formally Nuveen Real Eslate Limiied. a dedicated rea estate investment management business.

On 9 March 2021 the Group acquired 99%q of the issued share capital of Clean Energy Partners Holdco LLP and
its affiliated entities thereof {collectively, "Glennmont") lo increase its clean energy infrastructure platform.
TIAA International Holdings 1 Limiled, another group entity acquired the additional 1°e holding of Glennmont
and the non-controlling interest will be remeasured at each reporting period.

The Group made an initial cash payment of £72,899,000 (€84,879,000) and additional fixed and variable
deferved earn out consideration’s totalling £31,953,000 (€37,300,000). These deferrcd considerations meet the
definition of consideration for the business and are payabie in Lhiree ycars if revenue relention and grosth targels
are achicved. The earn outl consideration is currently estimated to be €26.900,000, contingent on fulure fund
performance. The fixed deferred consideration is valued al €10,733,000 a~ at 31 December 2021.

Al the time of the acquisition. the Group agreed 1o make these finure payinents to the partners of Glecnnmont
contingent on their continuing employment and fiture fund performance, payable in 3 yeurs. Deferred payments
linked to the continuing cmplayment ol the sellers will be recognised through the Consolidaied Statement of
Profit or Loss over the period ol the cam out.

Throughout this report, reference is made to the “Group” which refers to T111 2 and its subsidiary companies.

The Group’s consolidated revenue is primarily derived from invesiment manasgement activities from the
underlying subsidiaries in addition to the asset management of infrastructurc lollowing the acquisition of
Glennmont and s affiliates.

AL 31 December 2021 the Group's Assets Under Managenent (SAUMY) was £27.9bn (2020 £27.8bn).

During the year the Company terminated the scerelarial services of Comhbill Secretaries Limited and transferred
10 Nuveen Corporate Secrctarial Services Limiled.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group has a risk management framework in place o ensure that it meets its objediives within acceptable
risk paramcters. This framework is revicwed regulardy so (hat new and emerging rishs are swdentifed carly on.
‘The Group’s euhiure embeds the management of risk at all levels within the organisation. The framework under
which it operates also ensurcs that the business is capable of mecting its business objectives within s risk
appetite and is subject o continuous review. The main risks the Group faces are markel risk, liquidity risk,
foreign exchange risk and credit risk, which are discussed further in note 4 to the financial statements. The risk
of COVID-1% has continued 1o impact all of the principal risks above facing our business.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Respaonse to the COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 virus has had a profound cffect on societies, economies and markets across the world, and there
remains uncertainly about its future impact. The Group’s priorities during this period have been to cnsure the
health and safety of its employees and to continue to focus on delivering value for its stakeholders. While this
crisis is unprecedented in recent memory, the Group’s business model and culture have meant that it has
responded effectively to the challenges and maintained its eperational, investment and support activities as closa
to normal as possible.

Operational impact

Although the nature and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic was not predicied, the Group’s Business Continuity
Plan was deployed swifily and delivered an effective response in the context of the rapid development of
government puidance, policies and legislation in cach of the countries in which the Group operates. Over a
two-week period in mid-March 2020, the Group successfully transitioned from full-time office-based roles to
working remotely. This was efficiently carried out due to the Group's global operating model and robust 1T
infrastructure, as well as the commitment and dedication of all employees at a time of significant uncenainty.
The integrity of the Group’s remote access environment enables effective management of cyber security risks in
the remote working period which has continued throughout 2021.

Some working practices were changed carly in the crisis, such as no face-to-face meetings and a restriction on
travel, and while al the time of writing they remain in place it is expected that they will ultimately prove
temporary. Nonetheless, the increased use of “virtual” communications since the start of 2020 is likely (o have a
fasting impact on behaviour across the industry.

In Tine with Jocal government guidelines, cerlain offices have begun to rcturn 1o office-based operations, with
strict social distancing rules in place. However, the Group's post COVID-19 approach will include a hybrid
working policy.

Communications

The worldwide impact of the pandemic on working practices meant that the Group had 1o employ alternative
ways ot communicating with stakeholders, The Group has a significant increase in the use of videu calling
systems to enable cmployees 1o maintain contact with members of their teams and other colleagues, frequent
and reguiar Senior L.eadership Team emails and Zoom meetings to all employees. ongoing regular contact with
the Group's regulators, as well as communicating with stakeholders early in the crisis to provide a
comprehensive updaie and reassurance on the Group’s response 1o the developing siuation.

Conclusion

With the COVID-19 crisis evolving and the developments in vaccinations, the Group remains i close contact
with local health authorities, governmental agencies and other key stakcholders in all geographies, so that the
Group can react and adapl to any changes in circumstances and minimise the risk to the Group's customers,
cmployees and other stakeholders. There are a number of ongoing business revigws 1o evaluate different courses
of action in response to the crisis.

Looking ahead, the Group will review the lesson~ learned during this crisis as part of future updates to the risk
management {ramework. specifically when it come- 1o the Group's approach taken to prepare Tor simifar types
of events.

Russia-Ukraine war

The Russian invasion of Ukraine has crented significant uncerlainty in the global financial markeis and
cconomies. The duration and extent of this uncertainty and the related impact over the long-term cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time. While not currently expected to be maserial, Nuveen will continue 1o monitor
the impact on the Company’s business. results of operations, investments, and cash flows.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Directors' duties

The Directors of the Group must act in accordance with a predefined set of duties, as per 5.172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006, A director of a Company should act in good faith, which in tum, is most likely to promote
the success of the Company and benefit its stakeholders, The Directors' report on page 5 explains in detail how
the Directors fulfil their duties.

The Director must have regard to:

» The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

- The interests vl the Company's cmployees;

« The need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

» The impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment;

» The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and;
« The need to act fairly as between members of the Company.

Key Performance Indicators
The Group uses the following key performance indicators (KPIs) lo assist in the understanding of the
development, performance and position ol the business:

i) Assels Under Management

During 2021, the Group continued to undertahe the asset management for certain real estate investments of the
alfiliates of the Company located in lurope and Asia. AUM increased in the year due 1o the acquisition of
Glenmmont and the asset management of infrastrulure.

AL31 December 2021 AUM is £27.905 versus o Plan of £29.155 {2020 £27.8bn versus a Plan of £29.1ba). The
unfavouruble variance is driven by adverse forcign currency movements and Jower market activity.

ii) Cash Ulow from Operations

The Group monitors operating cash flows as a key element in understanding the performance and position of the
business Management expects lo continue Lo have positive cash {Tow from operations over (he next 12 months.

iii} Operating Margin

The Group expects Lo see a gradusl improvement in its operating margin in the long lerm. Since incorporation
the margin has been increasing and is seen as a key metric {or the Group.

Appraved by the Board of Directors on 13 Aprif 2022 and signed on its behalf by

DocuBigned by

Duntan Mertan.

BEOESAANSI0AICO
D 2. Morlon

Direcior
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Directors present their report and the audited Group and Company financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 which have been prepared under and comply with UK-adopted intemational accounting
standards.

Please refer 1o the Strategic Report on pages 2 to 4 for the activities and future developments ol the Company
and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties. For financial risk management refer to note 4.

Principal activities
The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company, The Group has overseas branches in Spain,
ltaly. Luxembourg, Germany, Denmark, Sweden and the Netherlands.

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of real estate and infrastructure asset managemenl services,
market rescarch and portfolio management advice.

Results and Dividends
The profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to £4,544,000 (2020: £656,000). The Directors do
not recommend the payment of a dividend (2020: £nil).

Financial instruments
The Group and Company financial risk management objectives and policies, including exposures to risks are
discussed in Capital resources and risk management, note 4 of these financia! statements.

Directors
The Directors, who held office during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the dale of signing the
financial statements were as follows:

D. D. Morton
M. 1 L. Sales
0. Salami

Directors’ third party indemnity provisions

Nuveen Investiment Management Holdings Limited {"NIMEL™) on behalf of the Company has made qualifying
third party indemanity provisions within the meaning given 1o the term by 5.234 ol the Companies Act 2006 for
the benefit of the respective dircctors which were in place throughout the year and which remain in place at the
date of the approval of these financial statements.

NIMHL may indemnify the Directors 1o the extent permitted by United Kingdom law NIMHL may indemnify
the Directors against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred in the actual or purported

execution and/er discharge of his duties, or in relation Lo them,

NIMIHL may provide the Direclors with funds 1o meet expendiure incurred or to be incurred by him in
gonnection with any procecdings or application referred above.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited
Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Directors' duties

The Directors of the Group must act in accordance with a predefined set of duties, as per 5.172 of the UK
Companies Act 2006. A director of a Company should act in good faith, which in tum, is most likely to promote
the success of the Company and benefit its stakehalders.

The Director must have regard to:

« The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

* The interests of the Company's employees;

* The nced to foster the Company’s business relationships with supphiers, cuslomers and others;

= The impact of the Company’s operations on the communily and the environment;

+ The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and;
« The necd to act [airly as between members of the Company.

The following paragraphs summarise how the Directors’ fulfil their duties:

Employees

the Group is committed to ils employees ensuring it aftracts, retains and develops its people. The Group
promotes a collaborative and inclusive work environment that encourages diversity, growth and development
and rewards individual and team achievemenls. These attributes are embedded in the employce’s values which
helps guide behaviour and achieve strategic goals. Applicants with disabilities are given equal consideration in
our application process. and disabled colleagyes have cquipment and working practices modified {or them as far
a5 passible and where it is safc to do so

Community and the Environment

The Group ensures it acts sustainably by micgrating environmental sociad and corporate goals. There are key
personoel dedicated 1o sustainabiluy who ensure the business is well placed to pursue growth opporiunities.
whilst minimising the risk ol accelerated depreciation and early obsolescence within the Group’s asset portlolio.
The sustainability team also educate the wider Group employees and directors (o guarantee the environment s af
the forefront of decision makiog.

Page 6
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Streamlined Energy and Carben Reporting (SECR) disclosure 2021

Imyact area Units of Sustainability Performance Mrasures Absolute
measurcment mensures
2021
Encrgy KWh 31 Electricity for landlord shared services 436,638
(subimetered exciusively to tenams
Total consumption procured by 436,638
TIAA International Holdings 2
32 District tor Jandlord shared services
thermals (ublipelered exclusively 1o ienams
Total consumption procurcd by
TIAA International Holdings 2
33 Fuels for landlord shared services 111099
(subymetered exclusnely to tenants
Total consumption procured hy 121099
TIAA Iniernationnd Holdings 2
X of applicatle properties Energy and associated GIIG 3
disclosure coverape
°s Proportion of energy and 3.8%
R i associated GHG estimated
Greenhouse gas tonnes CChe L35 Direct Scope | 249
cmissions 3.6 Indirect Scope2 93
Totat Scapes 1 + 2 {only) 117
Renewnble Enerpgy LhWh Encrgy Total landlord-ohained 0
e renewable energy
No of apphicable propertics Renewable energy disclosure 0
coverage
Intensity metrics
Intensity
o measyres
Impact ares Units of measurement Sustainabiits Performance NMeasures Office
2021
Energy KW Full Tene Bimployees Encrgy Builfling energy intengisy P49
vear
" "Greenhouse gas kgClhe Tl Tane Greenhouse gas Greenhouse gas intessity IR
emissions Emrplovess vem emissions
I'uli Tune Emplosees Energy and assoeiated GHG ige

disclosure cuverage

Nuber of applecable propeities

Ereryy and ossociated ouGg

disclosute covesape

Data qualifying netces

This environmental performance summary covers 01 01 2§ - 31 12/2} and focuses on TIAA
International Holdings 2's UK corporate activities. This includes the energy consumption for which
TLAA International Holdings 2 is responsible under the SECR guidelines,

The calculations in this report have been carried out in accordance with the GHG Protocol and the
carbon footprint combines Scope | and 2 emissions. Data has been collected from the entity via utility
bills and mileage expense claims. Estimations have been carried out based on data received in the
same period in the previous year where necessary. Data was collected in kWh where possible.
Mileage data was coltected as pass, miles travelled, and then converted into kWh using DEFRA
published conversion factors,
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR) disclosure 2021

The absolute values represent total energy and carbon arising from the activities under TIAA
International Holdings 2 direct control in the buildings that it operates.

Assets: Electricity consumption from the London office location (201 Bishopsgate), Edinburgh office
and One Angel Court (Glenmont office) is included in this report. Gas consumption has been included
for Edinburgh and One Angel Court. Mileage data has been collected for all expense claims to the
entity, for travel within the UK, or starting/ending in the UK, including expenses which are ultimately
recharged to other entities.

intensity values: Energy and carbon intensities have been calculated using only combined Scope 1
and 2 emissions (kgCO2¢) and have been normalised by the number of Full Time Employees at each
office,

Emissions factors: Carbon emission factors from DEFRA 2021 have been used to produce this report.
Energy Efficiency Initiatives
2021

Air Conditioning (Temperature Control): During periods of near zero occupancy the temperature in
the main office has been contiolled to a much wider dead band. This results in lower heating demand
in cold weather and lower chilling demand in warmt weather. It is very difficult to measure the exact
savings therefore the figure is an approximation. '

Whele Year Saving: 18,500 kWh

Air Conditioning: High elTiciency low friction bearings have been installed to all FCU's. FCU’s have
high running hours so small energy saving can amount 1o significant savings.

Whole Year Saving: 18,720 KWh

Z{P Taps: Zip taps siore hot and cold water and therefore use energy even when not in use. Nuveen
Zip taps have been shutdown during WFH periods to conserve energy.

Whole Year Saving: 360 kWh
2020

Lighting: Reduce lighting levels during periods of fow or zero occupation. During COVID-19 the
" office has often been totally unoccupied. Engineers have been checking ta ensure lighting is at
minimum levels.

Whole Year Saving: 19,938 kWh

Air Conditioning: The low office use has naturally resulted in reduced air conditioning energy usage
However, air circulation has also been reduced when safe to do so.

Whole Year Saving: 48,600 kWh

Low Use Cquipment: Equipment that has been infrequently used has been shut down to conserve
energy. The equipment, for example AV equipment and rack, has been set to off and only restarted
when required.

Whole Year Saving: 1,296 kWh
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {(SECR) disclosure 2021

UPS Systems: The Nuveen area IT load is powered by a 3 medule UPS. This UPS has been reduced
to 2 module operation for the majority of 2020. This results in a direct energy saving and a resultant
saving in air conditioning load in the UPS room,

Whole Year Saving: 10,368 kWh

Verification statement for SECR

Verco Advisory Services (Verco) hereby confirm that the energy consumption reported for SECR has
been verified through a trend and variance analysis. There has been regular correspondence with the
data collectors to review the accuracy of the data. The verification has been done in line with the
following standards:

- 150 14064-3
- IS0 50002
- 150 19011

The verification checks are delivered by Verco, a specialist sustainability consultancy, on the
sustainability disclosures related to TIAA International Holdings 2 UK operations.

Mark Challis

Operations Director

Verco Advisory Services
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Clients

The Directors ensure they have open dialogus with clients alfowing the communication to be effective and
efficient. Clients are expecting tncreased transparency in the levels of information which the Company fulfils to
ensure a range of products are available for investor's needs.

Ultimate Parent

TH1 2 is part of a wider group, therefore not only do the Directors have to act in good faith for the Company but
also the wider group. All of THI 2's Directors ensure that they promote the succsss of the whole group and
educale Directors across the whole organisation.

Risk Management

The risk management, compliance and legal leams are essential clements to the business. These teams are
partners to the investment, product and distribution teams' safeguarding decisions. The Group maintains a
threg-lines-of-defence modcel ensuring best practice:

» First line: Employees in the investment, product and distribution teams have a duty to supervise and follow
rigorous internal compliance guidelines,

«  Sccond line: Risk Management and Compliance teams with guidance from Legal, assisting in identifying
and mitigating nisks; and

= Third line: Internal audit function which provides information on the adequacy and eflectiveness of the risk
management process.

Going concern

Given the significant impact of COVID-19 on the macro-ecconomic conditions in which the Group is operating.
the Dircclors have placed a particular focus on Lhe appropriateness ol adopting the going concern basis in
preparing the (inancial statements Tor the year ended 31 December 2021 The Group™s goitg concern assessiment
considers the Group's principal aishs (see note 4) and is dependent on a mimber ol factors, including linancial
perl'ormzmcc.

Bascd on the above, together with available market information and the Directors’ knowledge and experience of
the Group’s business and markets, the Dircetors continue to adopt the geing concern basts iy preparing the
annuil nancial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Events after the reporting period

No ¢vents occurred afler the Statement of Financial Position date that have & malerial impact on the financial
statements. The Dircctors have not received any further information as at the approval date which has not been
reficeled in the financial statcments presented.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and consolidated financial stalements in
accordance with applicable faw and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that 1aw the
Directors have prepared Ihe Group and the Company financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards.

Under company !aw, Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group end Company and of the' profdl e luss ol the Group for
that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« state whether applicable UK-adopted international accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

+ make iudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the geing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safepuarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
recasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

the Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
cxplain the Group and Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy al any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Acl 2006.

Directors' Confirmations
In the case of gach Director in office at the date the Directors™ Report is approved:

+ so far as the Director is aware, there is no refevant audit information of which the Group's and Company’s
auditors arg unaware; and

» they have taken ali the steps that they ought 1o have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group’s and Comparmy’s auditors are aware of thal
information.

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP, will be propesed lor re-appoeintment in accordance with Section
483 of the Companies Act 2006, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in
office.

The Financial Statements on pages 16 to 69 were approved by the Board of Directors on 13 April 2022 and
signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by

Duncam. Morton,

BBERS0AN59DA4CO
L. 1. Morton

Director
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of TIAA International
Holdings 2 Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In gur opinion, TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the
“financial statemants”):

» give a frue and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the
group’s profit, the company's profit and the group's and campany's ¢ash flows for the year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accerdance with UK-adopted internationat accounting standards; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

‘We have audited the financial stalements, inciuded within the Annual Repornt and Conscldated Financial Statements {the
“Annual Report ), which comprise the Consolidaled and Company Stalements of Financial Position as at 31 Becember 2021,
the Consohdated Statemenl of Profit or Loss. lhe Consoldated and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income, the
Consclidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated and Company Statements of Cash Flows
for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial stalements, which include a description of the significant accounting
policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audt in accordance with international Standards on Auditing (LK) { 1SAs {UK)") and applicable law. Qur
responsibilities under 1SAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors' responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
OUF apinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical reguirements that are relevant fo our audit of the
financial statlements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard and we have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identiied any matenal uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
indwidually or cotlectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a geing concem
for a period of at leas! twelve months from when the financeat statements are aulhorised for 1Issue.

In auditing the financizl statements, we have conciuded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statemenls is appropriate.

However, because not all future evenls or candions can be predicted, this conclusion 1s not a guarantee as lo the group's
and the company's abllity to continue as a going concern

Page 12



Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other infarmalion comprises all of the information in the Annual Report cther than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the ather information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial stalements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materiafly inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we arg required to perform procedures 1o conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that
there is a material migstatement of this other information, we are required to repart that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we alsc considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to repor cerlain opinions
and matiers as described below.

Strategic report and Directors' Report

in our opinian, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2021 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

in light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment ohtained m the course of the
audit, we did nof identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Direclors’ Repor.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Direclors’ Responsibilities, the direclors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framawark and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The directors are alsc responsibie for such internal contro! as they determine is necessary o enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from materal misstatement, whether due to traud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the direclors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company's ahility to
continue as a going cencern, disciosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend 1o liguidale the greup or the company or to cease operations. or have no
realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whelhef due Lo fraud or error, and to issue an auddors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud ar error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reascenably be expecied to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial stalements.
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Irregularities, Including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
owr responsibilities, oullined above, to detect material misstaternents in respect of imegularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecling irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal nsks of non-comphance with laws and
regulations related to Companies Act 2006. and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material
effect on the financial statements. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements (incheding the risk of override of contrais), and determined that the principal risks were related to
manipulation of financial data to present more favourable financial results. Audit procedures performed by the engagement
team included:

« Enquiries with management and compliance. including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations and fraud;

« Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including those of the Board,

= Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent of our testing;

« {dentifying and testing joumnal entries, in particular any journal enfries posted with unusual account combinations, entries
posted containing unusual accaunt descriplions. and entries posted with unusual amounts, and

« Obtaining managemeni information and market data to validate and assess the inpuls into the calculation of
management's impairment assessment over goodwill, intangibles. and invesiment in subsidiades and challenging
assumptions made, where appropriate

There are inherent hmitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less kkely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely relaled fo events and transactions reftected in the financial
stalements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due 1o fraud is higher than the 7isk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intenticnal misrepresentations,
or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the auvdit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website al:
www.Irc org.uk/audiiorsresponsibilities This description forms parl of our auditors’ report

Use of this report

Thus report, including the opinions has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpese We da not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this ceport s shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by sur prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have nol ebtained al! the information and explanations we reqguire for our audit; or

= adequate accouniing records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received fram branches not visited by us; or

» cerlain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are nol made; ar

» the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions o report arising from this responsibility.
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Thomas Norrie (Senior Statutory Auditar)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Stalutory Auditors
Londen

13 April 2022
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-931A-AB99CIBDE495

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or L.oss for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Revenue

Administrative expenses
Other operating income
Operating profit

I'inance income

Finance costs

Net finance cost

Share of loss of associates and joinl ventures accounted for using
the equily method

Profi before tax
Income tax cxpense
Profit for the year

Profil attributabic fo:
Owners of the company
Non-controlting interests

i he above resulls were derived from continuing operations.

Note

2021 2020
£ 060 £000
105,166 92,902
(147,055) (116,978)
50,798 28,055
8,909 3,979
3 3
(744) (637)
(741 (606)
- (6)
8,168 3,367
(3,624) (2,711
4,348, 636
4,461 567
83 89
4,544 656

The above Consolidaled Statement of Profit or I oss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The notes on pages 26 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope 10, 4CD3E718-54F5-47A2-931A-ABI9CORDE4SS

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December

2021

2021 2020

£000 £ 0600
Profit for the year . 4,544 656
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1,902} 1,005
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,642 1,661
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company 2,603 1,548
Non-controlling imterests ' 19 113

2,642 1,661

The notes on papes 26 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope D 4CD3IE7 1B-54F5-47A2-931A-AB99CORBNE495

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Revenue
Administrative expenses

Operating profit/(Joss)
Finance coslts

Profiv{loss) before tax

Profit/{loss) and total comprehensive income {eapense) for the
year

The above results were derived from contineing operations.

The notes on pages 26 Lo 69 form an integral parl of these financial statcments.

tage 18

Note
5

2021 2020
£000 £ 000
20315 "
(112) (240)
20,203 (240)
- (N
20,203 (241)
20,203 (241)




DocuSign Envelope 1D 4CO3ET1B-54F5-47A2.931A-AB9SC9BDE495

T1AA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number; 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

31 December 3t December
2021 2020
Note £000 £ 000
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 2.107 2,512
Right-of-use assets 16 16,362 19,534
Intangible assets 17 225370 134,863
Investments in associates I8 a 79
Other investments 20 737 655
244,602 157,643
Current assels
Trade and other receivables 21 70,066 48,862
Current tax asset 1,719 1,685
Cash and cash equivalents 23 93,3098 98,501
165,183 149,048
Tolal assets 409,785 306,691
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Called up share capital 24 ] ]
Share premium 25 202,163 202,163
Capital contribution 55,833 -
Retained earnings 28.027 25,424
Total equity altribwitable 10 owners of the company 286,024 227.588
Non-controlling interests 27 (643) i)
Total cquity 285381 227,177
Non-current liabilities
| ease liabilities H 14022 18,019
Trade and other pay ables 28 43.949 10,985
Deferred 1ax liabilities 13 t.065 -
59,930 26,004
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 60.904 44,943
Lease habilities 16 3,560 3.318
Current tax liabikity - 2,231
Provisions 29 64 18
64,468 50,510

The notes on pages 26 to 69 form an integral pari of these financial slatements.
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DocuSigrt Envelope ID 4CD3E71B-54F 5-47A2-931A-AB99C9BDEAGS

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

(Registration number: 08698172)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

Note £ 000 £ 000
Total liabilities 124,404 79,514
Total equity and liabilities 409,785 306,691

The financial statements on pages 16 10 69 are approved by the Board of Directors on 13 April 2022 and signed
on its behalf by:

Doculigned by

Duncan. Morisw

BBERSEAOSILIECO
D. D. Morton

Director

The notes on pages 26 to 69 form an integral pant of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3ET18B-54F5-47A2-931A-A898COBDEASS

T1AA International Holdings 2 Limited

{Registration number: 08698172)
Company Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

31 December 31 December
021 2320
Note £000 £ 000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 18 309,588 202,163
Total non-current assets 309,588 202,163
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 21 1,657 75
Cash and cash equivalents 23 1,189 675
Total current assets 2.846 730
Total assets 312,434 202,913
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Called up share capital 24 ! 1
Share premium 25 202,163 202,163
Capital contribution 55,833 -
Retained earnings 20,749 346
Tota! equity 278,746 202,710
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 31,277 -
Current liabilities
Trade and other pay ables 28 1,941 203
Provisions 29 470 -
Total current liabilities 2411 203
Total liabilities 33,688 203
Total equity and liabilities 312,434 202,913

The financial statements on pages 16 1o 69 are approved by the Board of Directars on 13 April 2022 and signed
on its behalf by:

DezuSigned by:

Duncan. Marton

BR9PSEA059D54C0
D. . Morton

Director

The notes on pages 26 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3IE7 1B-54F5-47A2-931A-AB99CIBDEA495

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2820
Note(s) £ 000 £ 000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 8.168 3.367
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 6 11.933 7,772
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment 6 (27) 9
Foreign exchange loss (gain) 604 (10
Net finance cost 1112 741 606
Sharc of loss of associates accounted for using the equity method - 6

21419 11,732
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)‘decrease in trade and other receivables 2i (22,934) 5,877
Increase in trade and other pay ables 28 17.048 8.020
increase {decrease) in provisions 29 46 {4}
Cash generated Trom operations 16.179 25,625
Income Laves paid {4.526) (2,599}
Interest paid {400) (242)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 11.253 22,784
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received it 3 31
Purchascs of property. plant and equipment 15 {74 1) (1,137}
Proceeds from sale of property plant snd cquipment 58 17
Procceds from sale of other invesinienls - 59
Purchases of other investments 18 (57} M
Acquisition of subsidiarics (04,350) -
Contribution of capital from parent 55.833
Net cash outlTow from investing aclivities {9,454) (1,039}
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liability paymenis (3.568) (4,000}
Dividends paid {271) -
Net cash outlow (rom linaticing activitics 27 (3.839) (4,000)
Net (decrease)/incirease in cash and cash equivalents (2.040) 17,743
Cash and cash equivalenis at [ January 98,501 79,969
Cifeet of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held {3,063) 787
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 23 93,398 98,501

The notes on pages 26 10 69 lorm an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-931A-A889C9BDE485

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Company Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £ 000 £ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/{loss) before tax 20,203 (241)
Adjustments to cash (tows {rom non-cash items
Foreign exchange gain (634) -
19,569 (241)
Increase in trade and other receivables 21 (1,582) N
Increase in trade and other payables 28 1,698 59
Increase in provisions . 20 470 -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities 20,155 (259)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries 18 (76,108} -
Revaluation on investments held at cost 634 -
Contribotion of capital form parent 535,833 -
Net cash outfiow from investing activities (19,641) -
Net increase/{(decrease) in cash and cash cquivalents 514 (259)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 675 934
Cash and cash eguivalents at 31 December 1,189 675

The notes on pages 26 10 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-931A-A809COBDE4SS

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

I General information

These consolidated financial slatements comprise the financial statements of TIAA Intemational Holdings 2
Limited (the “Company™) a private company limited by shares, and its subsidiaties (logether the “Group™).

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of real estate and infrastructure asset management services,
market research and portfolio management advice,

The principal activity of the Company is that of a holding company,

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of'its registered office is:
9th Floor

201 Bishopsgate

London, England

EC2M 3BN

2 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
These Mnancial statements have been prepared i accordance witlh UK-adopted mlemational accounting
standurds,

The financial statements have been preparcd on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention,
except for the measurement at air value of lnancial instruments. including other invesiments as sct out in the
accounting policies below.

I'he preparation of finaticial statements requires management Lo make estimates and assumptions that affeet tle
antounts reporied for assets and liabilities as at the reporting dale and the amounts reported for revenues and
expenses during the peried. The noture ol estimates means (hat actual outcomes could differ from thosc
eslimates.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the Mnancial statements and notes e been rounded ofT 10 the nearest thousand
currengy bnits unless othenwise stated.

Going concern
iiven the signilicant impact of COVID-19 on the macro-economic condittons in which the Group is operating,
the Directors have placed a particular focus on the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis in

preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, The Group's going concem assessinent
considers the Group’s principal risks (sec nole 4) and is dependent on 4 number of factors, including financial
perflormance,

Based on the above, together with available market information and the Directors” knowledge and experience of
the Group’s bustness and marhels, the Dhrectors continue to adopt the gomy concern basis in preparing the
amual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 20217,

Svmmary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates

Ibe principal accounting policics applicd in the preparation of these lnancial statemenis are sel out below
| hese policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E718-54F5-47A2-931A-ABSSCIBDE4SS

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective
There are no amendments (o accounting standards, or IFRS Interpretations Commilttee interpretations that are
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 that have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Changes in accounting policy

The accounting podicies set out in these financial statements have been applied consistently to all years
presented. A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, but do nat have a material effect on these financial statements.

Ceonsolidation

Subsidiaries are all entitics (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsoltdated from the date that control
ceases.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an entity i facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes 10 one or more of the elements of control, on an annual basis.

The consolidated financial statements are based on the financial statements of the individua! subsidiaries drawn
up using the standard Group accounting policies. Accounting policies applied by individual subsidiaries have
been revised where neccssary to cnsure consistency with Group policies for consolidation purposes.

All intra-group transactions and balances between Group entities are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardiess of whether
cquity instruments or oflter assels are acquired. The consideration translerred [or the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the:

+  fair values of the assets ransferred,

= liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business;

+ equity interests issucd by the Group;

«  fair value of any asset or Hability resuliing from a conlingent consideration arrangement; and
«  fair value ofany pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary .

ldemifiable assets acquired and liahilitles and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination arc. with
limited cxceptions. measured initially at their far values at the acquisition date. The Group recogni-es am
non-controdling inlerest in the acquired entily, on an acquisilicn-by -acquisition basis, either at lair value or ut the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity 's net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

The excess of the:
+  consideration transferred;
= amount of any non-controtling interest in the acquired eniity; and

» acquisition date fair value of any previous equily interest in the acquired entity, over the fair value of the net
identifiable assels acquired is recorded as goodwill. 11 those amounis are less than the [air value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is recogniscd direetly in the consotidated
Statement of Profit or Loss as a bargain purchase.
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DocuSign Envelope ID 4CD3E7 1B-54F5-47A2-931A-ABIOCYBDE49S

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Where seltlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future arc discounted
1o their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate vsed {3.5%) is based on an indicative
estimate of TIAA’s cost of debt, plus a Z spread of 0.3%0 and an illiquidity premium.

Contingent consideration is classilied as a linancial Hability which is subsequently remeasured to lair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Foreign currencies

*» Functional and presentation currency

trems included in the (inancial statements of each of the Group’s subsidiarics arc measured using the cutrency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operales (the “lunctional currency™). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in British Pounds, which is the Company’s functional currency and the
Group’s presentation cumrency.

» Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into British Pounds @t the rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in Foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and Habilitics denominaied in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of the
reporting period and are measured al historical cost (translated using the exchange rates on the transaction date),
excepl for non-monetary items earried at fair value, which are (ranslated at the rates prevailing ot the date when
the {air valwe was determined. Gans and losses arising on transiation ae recognised in profit or loss.

» Group companics

The results and financial position of the Group enbities (none of which has a currency of a hy perinflationary
cconomy} that have a funciional currency different from Lhe presentstion currency are transiated into the
presenlation currency on consolidation as follows:

{i) assets and liabilitie~ for each Statement of Pinancial Position are transtated at the closing rate al the date of
that Siatement of Iinancial Position;

(ii}y income and cxpenses are translated at the rate on the date of the transaction; and

(it} all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income 1o the translation reserve.

On the disposal of a forcign operation (that is. a disposal of the Group's entire inlerest m a loreign operation. or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a forcign operation) all of the eachange
diffcrences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable 10 the cquity holders of the company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the {orcign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Revenue s measured at ihe Tair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for services provided, stated net of vatue added tanes. The Group recognises revenuc when the
amount of the revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that {uture econemic benefits will flow 1o
the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's aclivities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimate of rewurn on historical resulis, 1ahing into consideraiion the 1ype of customer, the type
of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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DocuSign Enveiope (D' 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-831A-A899C9BDE495

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

» Fee income

Fee income includes management fees, advisory fees, transaction fees, development fees and performance fees
stated net of rebates. Management fees, transaction fees, development fees and advisory fees are recognised in
the accounting period in which the asseciated investment management or transaclion services are provided.
Performance fees are recognised when the prescribed performance hurdles are achieved and it is certain that a
fee will crystallise as a resule,

* Other operating income
Income from transfer pricing is recognised on a cost plus aliocation to other TIAA aftiliated entitics.

Investments in associates

Investments in associates are those over which the Group has significant influence but nol controb or joint
canitrol. These are zccounted for using the equity method of accounting, Significant influence is considered to be
participation in the financial and operating poticy decisions of the investee and is usually cvidenced when the
Group owns belween 20% and 50% of that company’s voling rights.

Investments in assaciated entities are initially recarded at cost and the carrying amaunt is increased or decreased
lo recognise the Group's share of the profits or losses of the associaled entity after acquisition. At the date of
acquisition any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable net
assets of the associated entity is recognised as goodwill. The carry ing amount of these investiments is reduced to
recognise any impairment of the value of the individual investment. If the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in an associated entity the carrying value of that investment is reduced to nil and the recognition of any
fither losses is discontinued unless the Group has an ebiigation o make further funding contributions to thai
associated entity.

Where a Group entity has transactions with an associated citity of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are
climinaied to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associaled entity. Accounting policies of
associated entities have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Where there is a disposal of an investmen! in an associated entity, the carrving value of the investment held on
the Statement of Financial Position al the date of disposal is removed and offsct against the consideration
received for that invesiment, with the net profu or loss on disposal betng recognised in the conselidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised within finance income and finance costs in the Siatement of Proft
or Loss using the effective interest rate method, except for borrowing costs relating o qualifying assets, which
are capitalised as part of the cost ol thal asset. The Group has chosen to capitalise borrowing costs on all
qualifying assets irrespective of whether they are measured at fair value or not.

Fhe effective interest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The efTective interest
rade is the rale that exactly discounts estimated fuiure cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of
the financial instrument, or a shorter period where appropriale, 1o the ner cariving amount of the financial asset
or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering ail
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The caleulation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.
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Docu5ign Envelope 1D 4CD3E71B-54F5-47A2-931A-ABS9CIBDE495

TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised atl acquisition cost, defined as the aggregate amount paid
and the fair value of any other consideration given 10 acquire the assel, including any costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets o the location and conditton necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Assets are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation
Dicpreciation is provided at rates caleulated 1o write off the cost, less estimated residual value, based on prices
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, of each asset over its expecled useful life as follows:

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold improvements ls:::ght line basis over the period of the
Furniture and {ixiures straigly line basis over 3 - § years
Office equipment straight fine basis over 3 - B years
Computer hardware . straight line basis over 3 years
Compuler soflware straight line hasis over 3 years

. - straight line basis over the shorter of

Right of use awsets ) .
estimaled life or lease term

The carnying vatues of property. plant and cquiprient wre reviewed for impairment when 1t becomes apparent

that the carning value may not be recoverable. and in such circumstances the assets are writien down

immediately W their recoverable amount.

An item ol property, plant and equipmeni is derceopnised upon disposal or when no Tuture cconomic benefits
are expected 1o arise from the continued use of the assel The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the disposal procceds and the camrying amount of the asset and is
included in the Statement of Profit or [Loss.

Intangible assets
Goodwill represents the eacess of the cost ol a busingss combination over the {otal acguisition date fait value of
the identifiable assets. liabilitics and contingenl assets acquired,

Cost comprises the fair value of the assets given, liabilities assumed and equity instruments issucd, plus the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree plus, if the business combination is achieved in stages,
the {air value of the existing cquity interest in the acquirce. Phrecl costs of acquisilion are recogniscd
mmediately as an expense,

Goodwill arising on a business combination is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying
value being charged (o the Consolidated Statemient of Comprehensive fncome. When the faiv value of the
wengthable assets, lighilities and contingent Habilitics exceed the {air value of the consideration paid, the excess
i~ credited in full 1o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the acquisition dufe.

Goodwill on business combinations is determined 1o have an indefinite usetul fife and is not subject 1o
amortisalion.

[nvestment mapagemenl contracts have been identified as a separalely identiffable mtangible assel and are
recognised at fair value, calculaled by applying & discounted cash Row method o future recuring revenue
strcams arising from the contracts. The investment management contracts have @ finite useful ltfe and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation.
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Amoertisation

Asset class Amortisation methad and rate
Open-ended tnvestment management contracts straight line basis over 13 years
Closed-ended investment management contracts over the period of the contract

Impairment of intangible assets

Assets that have an indefinjte useful life - for example, goodwill - are not subject (0 amortisation and are testad
annually for impairment, or more frequenlly i events or changes in circumslances mdicale a potential
impairmeni. Asseis thal are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The fair value i3
bascd on forecasts approved by the board, extrapolated for expected future growth rates and discounted at a risk
adjusted discount rate based on the Group's weighted average cost of capital. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, asscts are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.
Naon-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at cach reporting date. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

Financial Instruments

« Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s halance sheet when the Group has
becomie a party to the contractual obligations of the financial instnuunent. The Group determines the
classification of its financial instrumemts at initial recognition in accordance with the categories outlined below
and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting period end. When financial instruments are recognised
initially, they arc measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the case of linancial assets and
financial liabilities not at fair value through the Statement of Profit or Loss, directly attributable transaction
Losls.

« Financial assels

Al linancial assets are subject o review for impairment at least at each reporiing date to identily whether there
is any obicctive evidence that a financial asset is impaired. Different criteria 10 determine impairment arc
applicd lor cach category of financial assets, which are described befow. All income and expenses relating to
financial assels that are recognised in Statement of Prolit or LLoss are presented within finance costs, lnance
income or other linancial items, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within expenses.
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* Financiaf liabilitics

The Group’s f{inancial liabilities include wade and other payables. Financial liabilkies are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. except for financial liabilities held for trading
or designated at fair value through the Profit and Loss account. thal are carried subsequently at fair value with
gains or losses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

« Derecognition

The Group derecognises a linancial asset when the conlractual rights to the cash flow from the assel expire, or il
transfcrs the rights 1o receive the contractual cash flows on the linancial asset wa u hransuclion in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transierred. Any interest in
transferred financial assels that is created or retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
The Group derecognises a {inancial liability when its conttactual obligations are extinguished, discharged or
cancelled or have expired.

= Provisions

Provigions are recegniscd when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation. s a resuft of past
evenls. for which it is probable that an outflow ol economic benefits will be required to scttle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Provisions arc measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to seltle the obligation
using a pre-tan rate that reflects corrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific 1o
the obligation. [he increase in the provision due fo the passage of time is recagnised as interest expense

Other investments

Other investments comprise of cquiy investments that do not have liaed maturitics and fixed or determinable
payments. and management intends io hold them for the medium to long-lerm. Other invesiments are measured
at [air value through the Statement of Prafit of Loss.

Other investments are presented as non-currenil assets unless they mature. or management intends to disposc ol
them within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents
Uash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bk

Trade receivables

Irade reccivabics are amounts due from customers for services perfonned n the ordinary course ol business. I
cellection 15 expeeted in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classitied as current assets. IMnot, they are presented as non-current assels

rade recervables are recogiised initiadly st the transaction price. They are subsequently measured al amorlised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for the impairment of trade
reeeivables s established when there is objective evidence that the group will nat be able o collect all amounis
due according Lo the original tarms of the receivabics.

the Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach o owasueing expected credit losses which uses a liletime
evpeeted loss allowanee (o ali (rade receivables To measure the eapected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due,

Prepayments

Prepayments arc carsied at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
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Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the lair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurcment is on a present value basis.

Members' remuneration
The policy to allocate profits is governed by the amended members' agreement dated 9 March 2021

Members' capital

Members’ capital that is not automatically repayable on retirement is classified as equity. Members’ capital that
is amomatically repayabie on retirements is classified as a liability. Members® capital, whether classified as
equity or a liability are not interest bearing.

Taxation

Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it relates 10 items recognised
directly in other comprehensive income or equity - in which case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or cquity.

The current income tax charge is calculaled on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
date of the Statzment of Financia! Position in the countrics where the Group operates, Management periodically
cvaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
intcrpretation, and establishes provisions where appropriale on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
lax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in futl, using the Liubility method. on temporary differences arising between the
1ax bases of assets and liabihities und their carrying amounts in the consohdated financial statemems. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit ner loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) thal have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the date of the Statemenl of Financial Position and are cxpected to apply when the
related deferred income tax assel is realised or the deferred income tax Hability is settled,

Deferred income tax assets are recognised 10 the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
availuble against which the temporary differences can be uiitised.

Deferred income tax 18 provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Defarred income 1ay assets and liabilities are ellset when therg is a legally enforceable right to offsel current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income ax assets and liabilities relate to income laxes
levied by the same tanation awthorily on either the same taxable entity ov different taxable entities where there is
an intention 1o scttle the balances on a net basis,

Employee benefits
The Group operates various cmployment schemes, including both defined contribution pession plans and
medical plans,

* Defined contribution pension obligaiion
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A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufticient assets to pay all
employces the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory. contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an employee benefil expense when
they arc dueg. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

* Long term wicentive plan

The Group has accrued for long-terim cash ~cttled deferred compensation which is determined by an estimale of
the value of the expecied future payments. Actual long-termn cash setiled deferred compensation could vary from
those estimates.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the peried over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

Al the end of each reporting period the Group revises its estimates of the benefit that is expected to vest. It
recognises Whe impact of the revision to original estimate, il any, in the Statement of Profit ol | oss,

Other expenses
Capenses include fegal. accounting, auditing and other fees. ey we recognised in the Consolidated Statement
ol Profit of Loss in the period in which they wre incutied (o an accruals basis).
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Leases
The Group leases various assels, comprising property, plant, equigment.

The determination whether an arrangement is, or containg, a lease is based an whether the contract conveys a
right to centrol the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

The following sets out the Group’s lease accounting policy for all leases with the exception of [eases with a low
value and term of 12 months ar dess for which/vhers we have taken the exemplion under the standard, These ae
expensed 1o the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

At the inceplion of the lease, the Group recognises a right-of-use assel and a lease liability, A right-of-use asset
is capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost, which comprises the present value of minimum fease
payments determined at the inception of the lease. A lease liability of equivalent value is alse recognised.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the shorler of estimaied life or the lease
term,

Depreciation is included within the line item administrative expenses in the Stalement of Profit or Loss.

Under IFRS 16 the right-o{-use assets will be tested for impairment in accordance with JAS 36 "[mpairment of
Assets”. This will replace the previous requirement 1o recognise a provision for an onerous lease. The Group has
elected 10 apply the exemption to treat existing oncrous leases as impairments on adoption.

The corresponding lease liabilily is included on the Statement of Financial Position as a lease Hability. The lease
liability s measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Lease payments are apportioned
between 4 finance charge and a reduction of the lease liability based on the constant interest rate applied o the
remaining balance of the liabiliy, Interest expense is included within the line iem nel finance costs in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

The lease payments comprise fixed payments and variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
initially measured using the minimum index or rate at inception date. The payments also include any lease
incentives and any penalty payments for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
optien.

The lease term determined comprises the non-cancellable period of the leuse contract. Periods covered by an
option to extend the kease are included H the Group has reasonable certainty that the option will be exercised and
periods covered by the option to werminate are included i7it s reasonably ceriain that this will not be exercised,

The lease liability is subseguently remeasured (with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assel)
when there is a change in future lease pavments due o a renegotiation or market rent review. a change of an
index or rate or a reassessment of the lease werm.

The lease payments are discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate thal the
individual lessee would have 1o pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar vulue to the
right-of-use asset in a similar cconomic environment with similar terms. security and condHions.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Dividend distributions
Dividend distribulions o the company’s shareholders are recogniscd as a liability in the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Cstimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience as adjusted for
current market conditions and other factors.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Management makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulling accounting cslimates will,
by definition, seldom cqual the relaled aclual results. Estimates are centinually evaluuled and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of [uture events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. |he estimates that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year arc outlined hetow.

Useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment and investment management contracts

The depreciation charge for property, plant and equipment and the amortisation charge for invesiment
managemenl contracls are sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lives and residual value of the
assets, The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually in line with the property, plant
and equipment and intangible assels accounting policy. They are amended when necessary to rellect current
cstimates, based on technological advancement. future investments. economic utilisation and the physical
cendition of the assets. Investment management contracts are amended where necessary Lo reflect the current
circumstances of the underlying contracls.

Deferved compensation scheme
The Group has acciued lor a leng-tenm deferred compensation scheme which is delermined by an estimate of
the value ol the expected Tuture payments, Actudt oulconies could vary from those estimaies.

Development fees .
Development fees are recognised throughout the period in which devclopment management services arc
provided. on the hasis of the amount of work completed in the period. This requires reasomable estimates and
judgements lo be made. Should any over or under-cstimate be made. fees in fiture periods would be adjusted Lo
reflect this. Total development and developiment performance fees recognised during the year amounted o
E4.982.000 (2020: £5,034,000).

Investments in subsidiaries
As noted in the accounting policies above. invesinients in subsidianes are held at cost. Management reviews the
investment at each period end for any signs ol impairment.

Empairment of intangible assets

fntangible assels are lested for impairment in line wilh the policy deseribed in nole 2 to these financial
stfements When assessing impairment of wtangibles. management considers factors including the tong wrm
growti rate ang discount rates applied. and historical experience. Any goodwill impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Ihe Group makes an estimate of 1he recoverable value of trade and other reccivables. When assessing
impainment of trade and other reccivables. mansgement considess [actors including the credit rating of the
receivable, fhe ageing profile of receivables and historical eaperience. The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for ali trade
receivables.
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Fair values of contingent liabilities and purchase consideration in a business combination

Contingent consideration is measured on future fund performance and is subsequently remeasured at each
reparting date. Refer to accounting policy, "Business combination” on pages 27-28 of these financia! statements
{or further detail. :
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4 Capital resources and risk management

Group and Company

Management of capital

The objectives inherent in the capifal management policy of the Group are:

* To maintain a strong capital base;

* 1o meet regulatory requirements at all bmes in all jurisdiciions in which the Group operales;
= To ensure that the Group can continue as a going concern; and

* To provide an adequate relurn to shareholders

In order (o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid 1o
shareholders, refurn capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Management view the following as the capital of the Company and Group:
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31 December 31 December

2021 2020
£000 £000
Group
Called up share capital I |
Share premium 202,163 202,163
Capital contribution 55,833 -
Retained earnings 28,027 25,424
Non-controlling interests (643) (411}
285,381 27177
Company
Called up share capital | 1
Share premium 202,163 202,163
Capital contribution 55,833 -
Retained earnings 20,749 546
278,746 202,710

Financial vish management
Management consider financial risk manapgement on a Group basis. Managemen! consider that ithe Group has
the following risks:

* Liquidity risk

+ Markel risk

~ Foreign currency risk

* Credit risk

* Brexit risk

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to Liquidity risk which is the nisk that the Group will have insufficiemt cash resources o
meet its obligations as they fall due. Management manage liquidity risk by performing cash Now Torecasting in
the operating entities of the Group. Forecusts of lquidity requirements are monitored to ensure tie Group has
sufficicnt cash 1o meet its operational necds. Given the uMimate Group structure the liquidity risk is seen as
minimal for the Group. The following are the undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities of the
Group:

Al 31 December 2021:

Due between

- . Due in under 3 months  Due between 1 Due between 2
Non derivative financial
liabitities 3 months and 1 year  and 2 years and 5 years Total
‘ £0060 £000 £000 £000 £000
‘I'rade and other payvables 35.687 23,406 - 44 182 123,275
Deferred tax liahilities - “ - 1,065 1.065
Provisiens 64 - - - ad
55,751 23 406 - 45,247 124,404
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At 31 December 2020:

Due between

L . Due in under J months Duc between I Due between 2
Non derivative financial d
liabilities 3 months and 1year  and 2 vears and 5 years Total
* £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £0060
Trade and other payablcs 42,909 23,250 - 10,985 77,144

Market risk management

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fluws of 4 financial instrumen! wul Huctuate because ol
changes in market prices. The Group’s market risks arise from {a) a significant reduction in income and
valuation (o a {inancial assel or liakility and (b} a significant decline in the value of AUM. The Group is able o
mitigate risk {to a certain extent) via natural hedging within the Group, being the natural ofTset of assets and
finbilities of the same currency. It is important to note, the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside
these limils in the event of more significant markel movements.

Sensitivities to markel risks included below are based on a change in one factor while holding other factors
constanl. In practice. this iv unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the lactors may be correlated  {or
example, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign currency rade.

The Group has been quick o address issues ercated by the COVID-19 pandemic, allowing the Group to
contipte et the needs of its customers whilst adbering o sirict Goverament guidelines  The health, sattty
and welfare of our employees and those in the communities we serve has been under intense fecus, crsuring our
operational and support management teams are able o perform at optimum levels,

The longer-ternt impact of COVID-F) remaing uncertain with many unknowns, but the principles of invesling,
the lonp-term growth apportunities and the resiticnes of the Group’s business model, ensure that the Group is
well-positioned 1 meet the challenges and opportunitics cesnlting from the crisis.

Brexil has caused unplications distributing products from the UK into the LU and ihe access 1o the EU and UK
markets depends on the regulation of the investment manager. Management proposed a number of Brexit plans
i 2019, all of which have been implemented and are operating effectively.

Both the COVID-19 pandemic, Brexit and the Ukraine-Russia war are recent world events that could have an
impact on the business, assct vatuation and revenue. This is managed vio a minture of a diversity of clients,
distribution channels, products and regions so there is not a concentration in one puarticular part of the market
and sceking fees that are not solely related to market value.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company and its subsidiarics that opeiate internationally are eaposed to loreign eschange risk, primarily
with respect to the Furo. Foretgn cxchange risk arises in respect of those recognised manctary financial assels
and liabilities that are not in the functional currency of the respective company entity.

Tre Group has various financial assets such as trade and other receivables and cash in short terns deposits that
aise digelly from s operations. The Group's principal linancial liabilitics are trade and other payables. The
M purpese of these financiad Habilities is to finance the Group’s operations.

Management consider foreign eachange risk on a Group basis rather thim on an entity by entity basis. The

functional currency of the Group is British Pounds; the functional curreney of the Company and its principal
subsidiarics is British Pounds.
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The Group had the following main currency exposure at 31 December 2021:

Assets Liabilities Net exposure
Currency £000 £ 000 £000
AUD 1,727 465 1,262
CAD . 2 2)
CNY 367 10 266
DKK 1,452 1,353 99
EUR 60,124 406,267 19,857
HKD 32 - 32
IPY 723 49 674
SEK 1,397 135 1,262
SGD 1,732 469 1,263
CHF 16 5 B
NZD 1 70 (59)
UsD 6,460 5,633 805
74,041 48,573 25,470

‘The Group had the following main currency exposure at 31 December 2020:

Assets Liabilities Net exposure

Currency £ 000 £ 000 £000
AUD 3,455 673 2,782
EUR 47,238 5,713 41,525
SEK 796 125 671
SGD 390 785 (193)
UsDh 4,755 3,601 1,154
36.834 10,897 45,937

The Group’s exposure 0 foreign currencies held on the balance sheet eould affect the Group's profit or foss. At
31 December 2021 iU GBP bhad strengthened by 10% against the above currencigs and all ather variables were
held constant. pre<tax profit for the vear would have been reduced by £2,347.000 (2020: £4,594,000). This
sensitivity analysis is considered 16 be representative of the Group's position throughaut the vear,

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the rish that one party 0 2 Lnancial instruntent will cause a Minancial less for the other party by
failing 1o discharge an obligation, The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents held at banks and trade receivables. The Company’s subsidiaries’ main
customers are property owning companics. Cash bulances are hold with high credit guality financial institations
{BBB+ grade) and the Group has policics o limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial nstitution. No
financial assets are deemud 1o be impaired or past due at year end.

No (2020: n0) credil limils were exceeded during the reporting vear, and management docs not expect any
losses for non-performance by counterparlies.
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5  Revenue

Group
‘The analysis of the Group's revenue for the year from continuing operatians is as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £ 000
Management Tees 88,718 79.556
Development ees 4.982 3.034
{ ransaction Fees 4 400 §.252
Performance Fees 7,066 3,060
105,166 92,902
Company

During the year the Company reccived a dividend from TIAA Internationat };ioldings 3 Limnted lor £20,315,000
12020: £Ni).

6 Administrative expenses

Group
Cperating profit is arrtved at afier charging {ereditingy

2021 2020

£ 000 £000
Staft conts 107,918 88,3108
Depreciation on right-of-use assels 3.4406 3.580
Duprectation on property, plant and equipment 1.342 1,202
Amortisalion expense 7.143 2.990
Foreign eachange (gains) losses 604 (10}
Mrofit on disposal ol property, plant and cquipment (27) (9)
Other administrative expenses 26,627 20,917

147,055 116,978

7 Auditors’ remuneration
Group

20 2020

£ 000 £000
Auvdit of the Company and subsidiary financial statements 738 645
Other fees to auditoers
Non-gudit services 2 (2)
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Company
2021 20290
£000 £000
*Audit of the Company financial statements 188 34

188 134

*All lees payable to the Company's auditors relale to the audit of the Company’s financial stalements, so no split
for non-audit services is required.

8 Directors’ remuneration

The [ollowing emoluments were paid by the Comipany and the other Group companies in respect of the services
of Directors of the Company and other Group companies;

Group
2021 2020
£000 £000
Wages und salaries 1,619 4,646
Other pension costs 38 62
1,677 4,708

The emoluments paid by the Company and the other Group companies in respect of services provided by the
highest paid Director of the Company and other Group companies were as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000
Wages and salaries 1444 4,252
Other pension costs . 46 46
1 490 4.208

Company
The emoluments of D, D. Morton and M.} L. Sales are paid by Nuveen Administration Limited which makes
no recharge 1o the Company (2020: £ni]). The emoluments of 0. Salami are paid by the ultimate parenl. TIAA
with no recharge being made to the Company. The Directors are directors of a numnber of fellow subsidiaries and
their total emolumems are included in the aggregaie of dircctors emoluments disclosed in those financial
stalements.
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9  FEmployee information

Group

The agpregate staff costs were as folfows:

2021 2020

£ 000 £000
Wages and salaries 89.605 59,885
Social security costs 4,941 4.163
Pension costs, defined contribution scheme 4,436 3,638
Redundancy 1,610 15,971
Otler employee expense 7,326 4,651
107,918 £8.308

The average number ol persons employed by the Group during the year, analysed by category was as follows;

o 2020
No. Nao.
Support & admimstialion 225 215
Investment professionals 172 141
Business developnient & markeling 57 52
A4 40B
Company
The Company has no employ ecs (2020: nit).
10 Other operating income
the analysis ol the Group's other operating income Tor the year is as follows:
202¢ 2020
£ 000 £000
transfer pricing - related parties 48,810 26.687
Miscellancous other operating income 1,88 1,368
50,798 28,055

Transler pricing income relates to cost plu- allocation to other TIAA afiliated entitics.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

1! Finance income

Group

Finance income
Other interest receivable

Total finance income

12 Finance costs

Group

Finznce costs
Other interest expense

Total finance costs

i3 lncome tax expense
a) Analysis of tax charge for the vear

Group

Tax charged in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Current taxation
UK corperation tax

Deferred taxation
Current year deferred ax (credit)/charge

Tax expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss

2021 2020
£000 £ 000
3 3
3 31
2021 2020
£ 000 £ 000
744 637
744 637
2021 2020
£000 £ 000
2,559 2434
1,065 277
3,624 2711
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
b} Factors affecting the tax charge for the year

The difference between the toml current tax charge shown above and the amount calculated apphing the
standard rate of UK corporation tax to the profit before tax is as follows;

2011 1020

£ 000 £ 000
Profit before tax 8,168 . 3,367
T'ax on profit on ordinary activities at standard corporation lax rate of
1994 (2020° 19%) 1,354 640
Tax effect of:
Increase (decrease) from effect of expenses not deductible in
deterrnining taxable profit (tax foss) 1,358 756
Increase (decrease) from eflect of loreign tax rates (408) 808
Deferred tax expense {credity relating to changes in tax rates or laws 1,065 277
Short termt timing dilferences 255 230
Total tax charge 3.624 il

Factors that may affect future tax charges

In the Spring Budget 2020, the UK Govemmert ammounged that from | April 2020 the corporalion {ax rale
would remain al 19% (rather than reducing 0 7%, as previousty enacled). T he Government made a number of
hudget announcements on 3 March 2021, These include conflirming that the raie of corperation tax will increase
0 25% from | April 2023, This new law was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021, Delerred tases al the
Statement ol Financial Position dale have been measured using these enacted tax rates and reflected in these
financial stalements.

14 Financial instruments

Group
Financial assets
Finnncial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Carrying vaiue Fair value
31 December 31 Decestber 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2020
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Other i estments 757 635 757 655
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Financial assets at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cast

Trade and other pay ables

Carrying value

31 December

31 December

Fair value

31 December 31 December

202t 2020 2021 2020
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
93.398 98,501 93,398 98,501
70,066 48,862 70,066 48,862
163,464 147,363 163,464 147,363
Carrying value Fair value

31 Pecember

2021 2020
£ 600 £ 000
104.853 55,789

31 December 31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£ 000 £000
104,853 55,789
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

16 Leases

Group

(i) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

Right-of-use assets
Buildings
Vehicles

Lease liabilities
Current
Nen-current

{(ii) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Depreciation charge on right-of-use assets
Buildings
Vehicles

taterest eapense (included in Gnance cost)

The totad cash ouwtflow for leases in 2021 was £3,568,600 (2020: £4,000.000).

17 Intangible assets

Group

Cost:

At 1 Januan 2021
Additions

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated Amortisation:
At 1 January 202}
Amortisation charge

Al 31 December 2021

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£ 000 £080
16,238 19,406
124 128
16,362 19,534
3,500 31,318
14,922 18.019
18,422 21,337
2021 2020
£000 £ 000
3,336 3.50t
%0 79
3,446 3,580
344 395
Investment
management
Goodwill contracts Tatal
£060 £ 000 £0400
124,610 41,144 163,754
50,449 47.203 97,652
175,059 88,347 263,406
- 30,89} 30,891
- 7,145 7,145
- 38,036 38,036
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TIAA International Heldings 2 Limited

Notes (o the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Investment
management
Goodwill contracts Total
£ 600 £ 000 £ 000
Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2021 175.059 50,311 225,370
As at 31 December 2020 [24.610 10,253 134 863

On 9 March 2021 the Group acquired 99% of the issued shared capital of Glennmont. For details of the
acquisition refer o note 19 - Business combination.

The future recurring revenues of the purchased investment management contracts {"IMC") have been valued
using a discounted cash flow model over the useful economice life of the underlying contracts.

The IMC's arc amortised between 1 - 15 years The remaining amorti<ation period of the IMCs are between 1 -9
years,

Amortisation of inlangible asscts is recognised wilhin administralive expenses. In accordance with 1AS 36
Impairment of Assets” management has caleulated the recoverable amount of both goodwill and the nvestment
management contracts via a combination of discounted cash flow and EBITDA valuation models

The goodwill 1 not amortised but is subject o an impainment review every year, as amt when indicators of
impairment exists

The Group considers itsel {o have a single cash generaling unit to which goodwill is allocated The recoverabie
value of geodwill {or the Company at year end has been delermined by a value in use caleulstion, using cash
flows bused on the Group’s 1 year operating plan approved by the hoard, and & terminal value for the period
therealter. The key assurnptions applicd to the Group’s 3 year apersting plan are market performance and net
fund flows.

The terminal value has been ealeulated using a long term growth rate of 3% in perpetuity.

A risk adjusted discount rate of 12.5% (2020: 14.8%) has been applicd. The resulting value in use has been
contpared with the carrying value of the Group’s intangible assets to deterimine if an impairment is required.

Scngitivity analysis has been performed by adjusting key assumptions, such as the discount rate and growth rate.
The model continued o show headroom over the carry ing value and thus there were no impairment charges in
2020.

As part ol the jmpairment review, a number of scenarios have been ren in isolation to identify the points at
which impairmenis would potentiafly need to be recognised. The cut-ofT at which cach of the inputs would
create an impairmentare as [pllows. based on an atready stiessed case which excludes the performance (ee duc:

Curreat inclusion Cut-off for
for impairment impairment at each
review change in inputs
Weighted Average Cost of Capital 129 13%
Achievement of Cperating Plan 100%, 89%
Growth in Perpetuity 3% 2%
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T1AA Iaternational Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

There remains flexibility within the Group’s cost base to manage profitabiliy via adjustiments to variable
remuneration.

Management considers that the likelihood of any or all of the above seenarios vecurring is low.

18 Investments

Group subsidizries

All subsidiary undertakings of the Group as listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares.
The proportien of shares held by the Group equates to the proportion of voting rights. All subsidiary
undertakings have been included in these consolidated financial statements. Details of the group subsidiaries ag

at 31 Dacember 2021 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Principal activity

Registered office

Proportion of
ownership interest
and vating rights
held

2011 2020

TIAA International Holding company 201 Bishopsgate.  London.  100% 0%
Holdings 3 Limited ECIM IBN

United Kingdom
Nuveen Invesument Holding compuny 201 Bishopsgate.  London,  99%a 99%,
Muanagement  Heldings EC2M BN
| imited United Kingdom
Nuveen -CACO Holding company 201 Bishopsgate,  London. 999 99
Limited FC2M 3BN

United Kingdam
Nuveen Lurope llelding company 201 Bishopsgate.  London.  99% 940,
Holdings Limited EC2IM 3BN

United Kingdom
Nuwveen Group Holding compiny 200 Bishopsgawe.  London.  99% 9954
Holdings Limited LC2M 38BN

United Kingdom
Nuveen Administration  Administrtion 20f  Bishopsgate.  London,  99% 99%
Limited company FC2M 38BN

United Kingdam
Nuveen Investmenl Operating company 201 . Bishopspate,  London.  99% 299
Manuagement 1sC2M 3BN
International Limited United Kingdom
Nuveen  Management Operating company 201 Bishopsgale, London, 99% 996,

ATFM Limited

EC2M 38N
United Kingdom
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Name of subsidiary

Henderson  European
Retail  Property  Fund
Management S.4.r.]

Nuveen  Management
Company
{Luxembourg) Nol
Saxl

Nuveen Propertly
Management  {Jersey)
Limiled

Nuveen Fund
Management  (Jersey)
Limited

Nuveen Singapore

Private tamited

Nuveen (IFrance) SAS

ClOF 1 (Nol GP)
I imited
C10F il {Nat

Nominee) Limited

CLOT 11 (No2 GI)
1 imited
CHOE 11 (Ne3 G
{ ymiicd

(1O 1 (GP) Limited

Matadoy LP  General
Partner Limited

Principal activity

Operaling company

Operating company

Operating company
Operating compny
Operating company
Operating, company
Refated (o CLOI fund
Related to CLOT fund
Related to CLOF Tund
Related lo CLOL tund
Related to CLOI I'uu&

Dornmant

Registered office

4a e Henrt M Schnadg,
L-2330 Gasperich
Luxembourg

4a rue lenri M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich

Luxembourg

11-15 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey, 1E4 0QI
United Kingdom

115 Seaton Place, St Helier,
Jersey. JE4 QQH
United Kingdom

50 Raffles  Place,  #06-00
Singapore.  Land lower,
048623

Singapore

7. rue Scribe 75009 Paris
Irance

201 Bishopsgale.  London,
C2M 3BN

United Kingdom
201 Bishopsgate,  londen,
CC2M 38N

United Kingdom
201 Bishopsgate,  London.
EC2M 38BN

United Kingdom
201 Bishopsgate.  Londun,
ELC2M 3BN

Untled Kingdom
201 Bishopspate,  Londoa.
LC2M 38N

United Kingdom
201 Bishopspate, Londom,
LEC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Name of subsidiary

Nuveen Corporate
Secretarial Services
Limited
Nuveen Operations
Limited
Nuveen Real Eswae

{Australia} Limited

OMP (GP) Limited

UK OM (LPD
Limited

(GP)

UK OM (LP1) Limited

UK OM (LF2) (GP)
Limited

UK OM (LP2) Limited

UK OM (L.P3) (GP)
Limited

LUK OM {1.P3) Limited

TIAA-CRFF
Lusembourg S.ar. |

Nuveen laly Sirl.

Principat activity

Dormant

Deormant

Operating company

Related to OMP furd

Related to OMP fund

Related to OMP Tund

Related to OMP Tund

Related to OMP fund

Related 10 OMP fund

Related 1o OMP fund

Operating company

Operating company

Registered office

201 Bishopsgate, London,
EC2M 3BN

United Kingdom

201  Bishopsgate.  London.

EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

44 Martin Place, Sydney, NSW
2000

Australia

201  Bishopsgate, London.
ECZM 30N

United Kingdom
200 DBishopsgate,  London,
EC20 38BN

United Kingdom
201 Bishopsgate, London
LC2M IBN

United Kingdom

]

201 Bishopsgate,  London,
LEC2M 3BN

United Kingdom
201 Bishopsgate, 1 ondon.
LC2M 38N

United Kingdom

201 Bishopsgate,
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

London,

201 Bishopsgate.  London.
EC2M 3BN
United Kingdom

da rue Henri M Schnadi
1.-2330 Gasperich

Luxembourg

Plazza Pio X1, 1, 20125 Milan
faly
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

Name of subsidiary Principal activity Registered office held
20 2020

Islazul General Partner Operating company d4a rue Henri M Schnadt, 99% 99%
Sarl L-2530 Gasperich

Luxembourg
Anglo-Sino  Henderson Operaling company Unit 22238, 36T, China 99% 99%,
Investment Consultancy World Tower, No.§
{Beijing) Co Ltd Janguomenwal Avenue,

Chaoyang  District, 100004

Beijing

China
Nuveen (Shanghai} Co Operating company Suilc 955 to Suile 9659 T, Bco 99% 99¢,!
Lid City, No.1788.Nanjing West

Road, Jing ‘An District,
Shanghai

China
MNoveen  Real  Estate Operating company & ruc Lou Iemmer, L-174 99%q 990,
Debt  Partners (Gl Linembourg
Sarl
T-C Lux [nvestments Operating company 40 ruc Henri M Schnady, 99% 99v,
GP Sart 1.-2330 Gasperich

Linenthourg
Lohanced Debt Carry Operiting company 40 rue Tlenri M Schnad,  99% 9G%,
(GMSacrl 1.-2330 Gasperich

Lunembourg
LCuropean Cities Operating compuny da gue Henn M Schaadt 999 990,
Partnership ((GP) S.arl L-2330 Gasperich

Lusembourg
Noveen  Management Operaling caompany Falkestrale 1. A-1010 Vienna Py 999,
Austria Gmbl | Austria
Nuveen  Management Operating company Manneiheimintie  20. 00100 997, 990,
1nland Oy Helsinki
: Finland
LRLS APAC U (GP} Operating company 8 rue Lou ttemmer, [-174 Q9g 999,
Sarl Luxembourg
Nuveen Real  Estate Operating company 8 rue Lou Hemmer, L-174, 099, 99%
Debt Partners H (GP) Luxembourg
Sarl
CLOF II' Vanquish Relaed to CLOT fund  11-15 Seaton Place, St llelier, 99% 99¢,
Limued Jersey, JE4 OQH

United Kingdom
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Name of subsidiary

Tokyo Muliifamily GP
e Lid

Nuveen Alternatives
Europe S.arl

Nuveen Asset
Management  Europe
S.Aarl

Nuveen Real [Estate
Services GimbH

{Austria)

ERES Europe I (GIY)
Sarl

Nuveen Real Estate
Debt Partners 11 (GP)
Sarl

Clean Energy Partners
tHoldeo LLP

Glennmont Assch

Muanagement Lid

Clean Encrgy Partners
LLi?

CGilennmont RLBS

Furope S.ar.l.

Glennmont Partiners 11
Sarl

Glennmaont Partners 1V
sarl

Principal activity

Related to
Multitamily Fund

Tokyo

Operaling company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Operating company

Holding company

Operating company

Operaling company

Related to  Glennmont
REBS Europe Fund

Related w  Glennont
Clean Energy Fund

Related to  Glennont
Clean Encrgy Fund

Registered office

8 Robinson Road #14-00 ASD
Building

Singapore

4a rue Henri M Schnadi,
1.-2530 Gasperich

Luxembourg

4a rue llenri M Schnadt,
L-2530 Gasperich

Luxembourg

Falkestrafie 1, A-1010 Vienna
Austria

4A. rue Henrr Schoadt, 1.-2530
Luxembourg
Lixembourg

8 rue Loue lNemmer, L-1748
Senningerberg
Luxembourg

4th Fleor. Reading  Bridge
ITouse, George Streel, Reading
RG1TBLS

United Kinpdom

4th Fleor, Reading Bridge
House, George Street, Reading,
RGILBLS

United Kingdom

4th Floor, Reading Bridge
House, George Stregt, Reading.
RGLBLS

United Kingdom

4121 route d'lisch, L-2086
Luxembourg

41217, route d'Esch, L-2086
Luxembourg

412F. route d'Esch, L.-2088
Luxembourg
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TIAA Internationa! Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Name of subsidiary

Clean Energy Partners
CEP Services Ltd

Clean Lnergy Panners
CLP2012 Linuted

Glenmmont  Partners 1

Limited

NRI Storape Portiolio
L imited

Nugreen Seivices Al

Luropean Core-Plus
1 ogistics Fund (G 8.4
r.t

Japan Alternatives
Living G Pte. Ld

Principﬁ] activity
Administration

company

Holding company

Related 1o Glennmeont
Clean Energy Fund

Holding company

Operating company

Related 1o
Logistics bund

Luropean

Holding company

Registered office

4th Floor. Reading Bridee
House, George Street, Reading.
RG1 8LS

United Kingdom

4th Floor. Reading Bridge
House, George Streel. Reading,
RGI 8LS

Enited Kingdom

4th  Floor, Rceadmyg  Bridge
House, George Street, Reading,
RGI 8L5

United Kingdom
201 Bishopsgate,  London
L.C2M 38N

bnited Kingdom

Bolagsralt Sundsvall AB, Bo

270, #3104 Sundsvall
Stockholm

Sweden

da rue lensi M Schnadi
1.-2530 Gasperich.
Lunembourg

I George Street, #14-05 Ong
George  Strecl.  Singapore
{049145)
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Subsidiaries exempt from audit

The following subsidiary undertakings arc exempt [rom the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to
the audit of financial statements under section 479A (section 479A(2){(d)).

Each member of the subsidiary undertakings has consented to an audit exemption in respect of the financial year
given below.

The parent guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary undertaking is subject to at the end of
the financial year to which the guaraniee relates.

For financial year ending 31/03/2022

OMP (GP) Limited - SC344934

UK (OM) (LP1) (GP) Limited - 06603589

UK OMP (LP2) (GP) Limited - 06605594

LUK OM (LP3) (GP) Limited - 06603608

For financial year ending 30/69/2022

CLOF 1T (GP) Limited - SC376961

For financial year ending 31/12/2022

Clean Energy Partners CEP20612 Limited - 08224625

Clean Energy Partners CEP Services Ltd - 082019483
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The following subsidiary undertakings are dormant and entitled 1o exemption from audit under section 480 of
the Companies Act 2006.

Each member of the subsidiary undertakings has not required the subsidiary to obtain an audit of its individual
financial statements in accordance with section 476 of the Companies Act 2006,

Furthermore, these subsidiary undertakings are exempt from the requirements of the Companics Act 2006
rclating to the preparatinn and {tlling of individual financial statements under section 394A and 448A

respectively.

The Parent guarantees all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary undertaking is subject to at the end of
the financial year to which the guarantee relates.

For financial year ending 31/12/2021
Matador LP General Partner Limited - SC286874
Nuveen Corporale Secretarial Services {.intited - 08938611

Nuveen Operations Limited - 09084229

For financial year ending 31/03/2022
UK OM (LP1) Limited - 06605386
UK OM (1 P2) Limited - 06605579

UK OM (1.P3) Limited - 66605583

Company

Subsidinries £ 000
Cost:

At | Januany 2021 202.163
Additions - acquistion of Giennmont 107.425
At 31 December 2021 309.588
Net Book Value

At 31 December 2021 309,588
At 31 December 2020 202.16;L

On © March 2021 the Group acquired 99°e of the issucd sharc capital of Clean I'rergy Partners Holdeo ! LP and
it~ affiliated entitics thereof (collectively, "Glennmont”).

the Group made an initial cash payment of GBP 72.899.000 ( 1-UR 84.879.000). | ixcd deferred consideration
totalled GBP 31,953,000 ( EUR 37,300,000} and the earn out consideration which meets the definition of
consideration for the business, payable in three years if revenue reiention and growth targets are achicved. For a
breakdown of consideration, including details of the significant estimate surrounding the contingent
consideration, piease refer 1o note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Management tests investments held for impairment annually. An impairment is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income immediately when the carrying value of the investment is greater than the enterprise
value. The enterprise value is determined by multiplying earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and
amortisation by 8.6, plus the net assets. The Group takes the approach that so long as the principal activity of the
Company has not changed, the carryving value transfers to other similar investiments held on the Statement of
Financial Position as long as the other similar investments' enterprise value supports the (ransfer and the transfer
daes not take any individual investment's carrying value above ils cost. At 31 December 2021 it has been
deterrnined that the carrying value of each investment is less than the enterprise value and therefore no
impairmeni is required.
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TIAA International Holdings 2 Limited

Notes to the Financia! Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Group associates
Details of the Group associates as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Proportion of
ownership interest
and voting rights

held
Name of associate Principal activity Registered office 2021
Nuveen Immobilicn Investment management Germany LI

GmbH (formally 1G] company
Immobilicn Gmbli)

Intergsts in associates are measured using the cquity method,

2020
50%: 50%

On 31 December 2021 Nuveen Immobilicn Gmbli was sold and all Directors' responsiblitics transferred o the

liquidalor.

The following table shows the assets, liabHities and cquity of the associated entities at the reporting date. All

associated entities Ikve the same reporting date:

Movement on interests in associates can be summiarised as tollows:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Opening balunce 79 132
Investment in associated enlity - |
Share of loss (or the year - (6)
Disposals ' (73) 48)
6

.
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19 Business combination

Acquisition of Clean Energy Partners Holdco LLP

On 9 March 2021 the Group acquired 99% of the issued share capital of Clean Encigy Partners Holdeo LLP and
its affiliated entities thercof {vollectively, "Glennmont™) to increase its clean energy infrastructure piatform.
TIAA International Holdings | Limited, another group entity acquired the additional 1% holding of Glennmont
and the non-controlling interest will be remeasured at each reporting peried. TIH 2°s parent, Nuveen Real Estate
Gioba! LLC funded additional capital during the year with the sole intention for the acquisition of the
Glennmont.

The Group made an initial cash payment of £72,899.000 (€84,879,000) and additional fixed and variable
deferted earn out consideration’s totalling £31,953,000 (€37,300,000). These deferred considerations meet the
definition of consideration for the business and are payable in three years if revenue retention and growth targets
are achieved. The earn oul consideration is eurtently estimated 1o be £23,044,000 (€26,900,000), contingent on
future fund performance. The fixed deferred consideration is valued at £8,909,000 {(€10,733.000) as at 31
December 2021,

At the time of the acquisition, the Group agreed to make these future payments to the parlners of Glennmont
contingent on their continuing employ ment and future fund performance, payable in 3 years, Deferred payments
linked to the continuing employment of the sellers will be recognised through the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or .oss over the period of the earn out.

The 100% consideration for the acguisition is stated below:

£
£000

Cash paid : 72,713
Fixed deferred consideration at acquisition date 8.909
Variable carn out consideration at fair value 23,044
Total purchase consideration 104.666
Less:
Cash acquired (11.342)
Trade receivables {1.648)
Right-of-use assel (1.622)
Accrued eapenses 1.827
Deferred income ' 1.166
Other asscisfiabitities recognised in completion Stalement of Financial Position 1.988

(9.631)
Goodwill recognised - 47.833
Additional amount attributabie to goodwill 2,616
Total goodwil] 50,449
Amount attributable to non-controlling interest at acquisition S04
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Goodwill of £50,449,0600 was recognised as part of the acquisition, which results from Nuveen's desire to invest
and grow the infrastructure platform. There were minimal cost synergies expected from combining the support
function operations of Glennmont with the Group’s operations.

The additional amount attributable to Goodwill relates to additional payments determined in the SPA agreement.
o ensure accuracy of the inlangihle assets, management assessed the significant inputs 1o the valuation models-
and challenged these assumptions by:

+  Comparing AUM performance;

«  Consdering the launch of future funds;

«  Considering client attrition rate; and

+ Comparing net inflows/outflows

Non-controlling interest al acquisition is measured at the non-controiling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net idenlifizble asscts. See note 2 for funther information regarding THI2's business
combination accounting policy .

Glennmont comributed to incomne and profit afler tux of £23.000 (€27.000) (rom the acquisition date. If the
aequisition occurred on | January 2021, the total cxpense and loss afier tax atributable 1o the Glennmonl group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted v €5 000 (€6,000).

I here were no avquisitions during the year ended 31 December 2020.

20 Other investments

31 December 3 December
2021 2020
£000 £000
Ungquored
Debt securities 757 655
757 655

I he investment in debl sceuritics classified for sale relates 1o investiments in Asia Pacific Cities Fund - £718,000
{2020, £640,000)), Glennmonl - £26,000 {2020: £Nil), LOOP 1V - £7,000 (2020:£7,000) and China Outlet Mall
Pund - £6,000 (2020, £8.000).

I hese investments are Tair valued with cost deemed 1o be the best estimate of [air value as at the Statement of
I'eumcial Posilion date, are included in fair value category level 3, and are denominated in the following
curreneies:

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£600 £600
Australian Pollars 640 583
United States Dollars Iy 72
757 655

The table below shows the movement in other investments during the year.
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2021 2020

£000 £000
Opening balance 655 760
Additions 57 g
Disposals - (64)
Net fair value movements through profit or loss 104 (81}
Translations (59) 32
757 655
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21 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2020

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000

Corrent

Trade reccivables 10,687 19,968 - -
Amounts owed by related parties 3,683 1,454 [.228 75
Accrued income 52.077 26,054 429 -
Prepayments 587 598 - -
Other receivables 3.032 788 - “
70,066 48,862 1,657 73

The fair value of those trade and other receivables classificd as financial assets held at amortised cost are
disclosed in the financial instroments note.

Al non-current receivables are due within 10 years of the reporting date.
The Groap's exposwe o ciedit and market risks. including fmpatements and allowances for credit losses,

relating 1o trade and viher receivables is diselosed in the Tinaneial risk managemenl and impairment nole,

The amoums owed by Group undertakings are unsecured. inteiest tree, have no {laed date of repay ments and are
payable on demand

22 Deferred tax liability

Deferred lax is recogmised in respeet of the 1emporary Uiming didfercnce between depreciation charged in the
financial statements and the capitad allowances claimed in the Umiled Kingdom and cmployer pension
contributions, shorl wim lemporary differenves and tan tosses canied forward. Movements in deferred taxation
are all charged through the Statement of Profit or Loss,

Group - Deferred tax

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£ 000 £ 000
Provision at start of year - 277
Delerred tay eapensed in the Consolidated Statement of Protit or Loss (1.065) (277)
Provision at end of year (1,063) o

The deferred tax lability ot £1,065,000 (2020: Enily has arisen as a result of the origination of temporary
differences in relation to tas logses carried forward to the extent that Wie realisation of the related tan benefit
through future taxable prolits is probable.
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23 Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Cash at bank 93,398 98,501 1,189 673
24 Called up share capital
Group and company
Authorised
31 December 31 December
2024 2020
No. £ Ne. £
Ordinary shares of £1 each 600 600 600 600
Altotted, called up and fully paid shares
31 December 31 December
202§ 2020
No. £ MNo. £
Issued, called up and filly paid share
capital ol £1 each 500 500 500 500
Issued, caltled up and unpaid share
capital of £] cach 100 100 100 106G
500 600 600 600
25 Share Premium
Share premium
Group and company
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£ £
Sharc premium accouit 202,163 202,163
202,163 202,163
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26 Parent and uitimate parent undertaking

The company's immediate parent is Nuveen Real Estale Global LL.C. These Nnancial statements are available
upon request from:

730 Third Avchue

New York

NY 10017

The uitimate controlling party is Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association.

Relationship between entity and parents
The parent of the largest group in which these financial statements are consolidated is Teachers Insurance and
Anrnuity Association, incorporated in Uniled States.

The address of Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association is:
730 Third Avenue

New York

NY 10017

The parent of the smallest group in which these Nnancial statements are consolidated is 111 Real Estate Glabal,
LLC. incorporaled in United States

The address of 111 Real Latate Global, LLC 1s-

730 Third Avenue

New Yark

NY 10017

27 Noun-controlling interests

Set oul below is summarised Tmncial information for cach subsidiary that has non-contiolling interests that are
malerial to the Group, The amounts disclosed {or cach suhsidian are before inter-company climmations.

Nuveen Real Estate Limited

2021 2020
£ 000 £000
Non-current assels 210,284 210,184
Current assels 459 17,300
210,743 227484
Current liahitities H 4
Nel assels e Q742 227480
Profil betore tas r;:__;..;lgzéﬁ-. n__“__u_w_‘)n}w@vg
Accumulated non-canteoliing interest JHl 492

Movemenls in non-contralling interests during the year can be summarised as lollows:
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Opening balance

Non-controlling share of comprehensive profit for the year

Dividends paid to non-centrolling interests during the year

Closing balance

28 Trade and other payables

Current

Accrued expenses

Other payables

Amounts due 1o related parties

Nosn-crirrent
Accruals and deferred income
Deferred consideration

2021 2020
£000 £000
41D (524)
39 113
270 -
1643) (411)
Group Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 0040
58,006 42,108 104 203
2,898 21.835 - -
- - 1.837 -
60,904 44,943 1,941 203
656 15 - -
43,293 10.97¢ 31,277 -
43,949 10,985 31277 -

Deferred consideration includes £31,.277.000 relating 1o TIH 2's purchase of Glennmont. The ramaining portion

relates 1o the Group's employee long term performance plan.

The fair value of the trade and other pavables classified as financial instruments are disclosed in the financial

struments note.

The Group's exposure to market and liquidity risks, including maiurity analysis, retated to vade and other

payables is disclosed in the financial risk management and impairment note.

Amounts owed Lo related parties are unsecured. interest free, have no fixed dale of repay ment and are payable

an demand.

29 Provisiens

Group

At | January 2021
Additional provisions

At 3t December 2021

Current liabilities
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Company
20
£000
Additions - provision for Glennmont Partners H loss allocation 470
AL 3! December 202] 470
Current liabilities 470

A provision has been raised during the year for £470.000 i relation 1o an amount that was due to be settied to
related parties as part of the consideration for the Glennmont acquisition. he Company has determined that it is
probable it is stilf due to be paid.

30 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related partics of the Company.
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclesed in the Group sections of this note. All trading
balances do net bear interest and have no fined tenn {or repayiment. Non-curren! balances do nol incur interest
and repayment will ke place once the associaled entity starts to make sullicient aperating prolit 1o facilitate
this, as such it 1s not pessible o predict when repayment witl oceur.

The Tollowing amounts were payable atyear end.

3t December 31 December

2521 2020
£000 £000
Amounts receivable fromApayable (o) other reluted parties:
Nuveers Alternative Advisors 11 C 21.882 9.109
Feachers Insutance and Annuiy Associalion 3,354 732
HAA Tnternational Holdings 1 Limited 989 276
Gresham Investment Management London | LC 159 [56
Nuveen |ong Kong Limited 22 43
Nuveen Japan Linited 420 26
Westchesler 82 -
Nuveen UK Limited - 34
MNuveen Alternative Advisors L1.C (19) (7
Nuveen Japan Co Limiled {765) (543)
Nuveen Hong Keng [imited (1,018) (961)
25106 8.855

The amounts outstanding are unsecured. carry no interest and will be settfed in cash No guaranlegs have been
given or received. No provisions have been made for doubtiul debis in respect of the amounts owed by refated

partics.
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31 Commitments

Group

Other than the commitments under icases disclosed in note 16 and deferred consideration in note 19, the Group
and Company have no further commitments,

32 Leases

Group
Non-canecellable operating leases

The Group leases various offices, vehicles and printers under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
six months to eight years. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On rengwal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

From 1 January 2019, the group has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except [or short term and
low-value leases. See note 16 for further information.

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

£000 £000
Not later than one year 132 125
Later than ane year but not more than five ycars 16 82
148 207

33 Events after the reporting period

No events oceurred aller the Statement of Financial Fosstion date that have a material impact on the linancial
statemnents. The Directors have not received any further information as at the approval date vwhich has pot been
reflected in the financial statements presented.
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Historical Cost Basis U.S. GAAP (unaudited)

The consolidated financial stutements of the Group and Company are prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards which differs in certain respects from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP™). The unaudited tables befow summarise the results
under UK-adopted international accounting standards and the historical cost basis ol accounting ol US GAAP
for year ended 3 | December 2021,

UK-adopted international

aecounting standards U.S. GAAP

2021 2020 2021 2020

£ 000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assels 244 602 157,643 244602 157,643
Current assels 164,053 149,048 164,053 149,048
Total asscls 408,655 306,691 408,635 306.691
Non-current liabilities 39936 29,004 39.936 29,004
Current liabilitics 64,468 50,510 64,468 50,510
Total liabilitics 124,404 79.514 124,404 79,514
Net assets 284,251 227,177 284251 227,177
Profit before tax 7.038 3.3()7_ 7038 3,367
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